

The Florida
Board of Physical Therapy Practice

Minutes

August 6-7, 2015

DoubleTree by Hilton Deerfield Beach

100 Fairway Drive

Deerfield Beach, FL 33441



Dr. Gina Petraglia, PT, DPT, COS-C, CEEAA
Chair

Ms. Christina Pettie, PT, MHA
Vice Chair

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE
BOARD OF PHYSICAL THERAPY
GENERAL BUSINESS MEETING
GENERAL RULES REVIEW
August 6-7, 2015
MINUTES**

**DoubleTree by Hilton Deerfield Beach
100 Fairway Drive
Deerfield Beach, FL 33441
(954) 427-7700**

Participants in this public meeting should be aware that these proceedings are being recorded and that an audio file of the meeting will be posted to the Board's website.

August 6, 2015 – 7:15 P.M.

The minutes reflect the actual sequence of events rather than the original agenda order.

Call the Meeting to Order and Roll Call:

Dr. Gina Petraglia, Chair, called the general business meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. Those present for all or part of the meeting, included the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT

Dr. Gina Petraglia, Chair, PT, DPT, COS-C, CEEAA
Ms. Christina Pettie, Vice Chair, PT, MHA
Dr. Kay Tasso, PT, PhD, PCS
Mr. Steve Chenoweth, PT
Dr. Patrick Pabian, PT, DPT, SCS, OCS, CSCS

BOARD COUNSEL

Larry Harris, Board Counsel,
Assistant Attorney General Office

STAFF PRESENT

Allen Hall, Executive Board Director
Jessica Sapp, Program Administrator

RULE DISCUSSION

Tab 1 64B17-2.001 Fee for Application, Re-Application and Initial Licensure

In response to the rules reduction project, Mr. Harris and the Board drafted the below amendments.

~~64B17-2.001 Fees for Application, Re-Application and Initial Licensure.~~

(1) Each applicant for licensure shall pay an application fee ~~in the form of a check or money order~~ payable to the Department of Health. The application fee is nonrefundable and is valid for ~~may not be used for more than~~ one year from the original submission of the application. After one year from the date of ~~the~~ original submission of an application and ~~application~~ fee, an applicant must submit a new application and ~~new fee shall be required from any applicant who desires~~ to be considered for licensure.

(2) The application fee for licensure by taking the national exam or endorsement is \$100.

~~(3) The application fee for licensure by taking the national examination is \$100.~~

~~(3)~~ (4) When the Board certifies the applicant to sit for the examination, it is the applicant's responsibility to complete the examination process with the national vendor. Pursuant to ~~In compliance with~~ the Americans with Disabilities Act, any applicant requesting special accommodations shall comply with ~~the~~ Department of Health's Rule

64B-1.005, F.A.C. (11/2014).

~~(4 5) The initial licensure fee is \$75.~~

~~(5 6) The unlicensed activity fee is \$5.00. This fee is in addition to the initial licensure fee.~~

(5) The biennial renewal fee for an active license is \$75.

(6) The biennial renewal fee for an inactive license is \$50.

(7) The retired status fee is \$50.

(8) The delinquency fee is \$55.

(9) The fee for reactivation is \$50.

(10) The change of status fee is \$40.

(11) The duplicate license fee is \$25.

(12) The certification of a public record fee is \$25. Duplicating fees as specified in section 119.07(4), F.S., shall also apply.

~~(13 7) An If an applicant who fails to pass the national examination and/or the laws and rules examination, the applicant is responsible to must meet the same requirements of as prescribed in subsections (2) and through (3 4), as of this rule where applicable.~~

MOTION: Dr. Petraglia made a motion to approve the verbally amended language and directed counsel to proceed with rule making procedures. The motion was seconded by Dr. Pabian and carried 5/0.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revision will have an adverse impact on small business. The board answered, no.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revisions are likely to directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs to any entity (including government) in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate in Florida within 1 year after the implementation of the rule. The board answered, no.

Tab 2 64B17-2.005 Biennial Renewal and Inactive Status; Delinquency; Reactivation: and Change of Status Fees

In response to the rules reduction project, Board counsel has proposed the below amendments.

64B17-2.005 Biennial Renewal and Inactive Status; Delinquency; Reactivation; and Change of Status Fees.

~~(1) The biennial renewal fee for an active license is \$75.~~

~~(2) The biennial renewal fee for an inactive license is \$50. Inactive status automatically revokes the privilege to practice in Florida.~~

~~(3) The retired status fee for a retired status license is \$50. Retired license status automatically revokes the privilege to practice in Florida.~~

~~(4) A license which is not renewed at the end of the biennium as prescribed by the Department shall automatically revert to delinquent status. Delinquent status automatically revokes the privilege to practice in Florida. The delinquency fee is \$55.~~

~~(5) The unlicensed activity fee is \$5.00. This fee is in addition to the active or inactive licensure renewal fee.~~

~~(6) The fee for reactivation is \$50.~~

~~(7) The change of status fee is \$40.~~

~~(8) Failure by a delinquent licensee to become active or inactive before the expiration of the current licensure cycle renders the license null without further action by the board or the Department. Any subsequent licensure shall be as a result of applying for and~~

~~meeting all requirements at the time of application.~~

MOTION: Dr. Tasso made a motion to repeal Rules 64B17-2.005, 2.006, 2007. The motion was seconded by Dr. Petraglia and carried 5/0.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revision will have an adverse impact on small business. The board answered, no.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revisions are likely to directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs to any entity (including government) in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate in Florida within 1 year after the implementation of the rule. The board answered, no.

Tab 3 64B17-6.001 Minimum Standards of Physical Therapy Practice

In response to the rules reduction project, Mr. Harris and the Board drafted the below amendments.

64B17-6.001 Minimum Standards of Physical Therapy Practice.

(1) Definitions – For purposes of this rule only, the words and phrases listed below are defined in the following manner:

(a) Acute Care – The stage of illness or injury characterized by actual or reasonable potential for a rapid change in medical status that would affect the physical therapy plan of care.

(b) Consultation – The offering of information aimed at the resolution of perceived problem.

(c) ~~Direction-Delegation~~ – The physical therapist's authorization and empowerment by a physical therapist of a the physical therapist assistant or other unlicensed personnel, as authorized by outlined in Rule 64B17-6.007, F.A.C., to carry out actions requiring subject to licensure under Chapter 486, Florida Statutes.

(d) Assessment – Observational, verbal, or manual determinations of the function of the musculoskeletal or neuromuscular system relative to physical therapy, including, but not limited to, range of motion of a joint, motor power, postural attitudes, biomechanical function, locomotion, or functional abilities, for the purpose of making recommendations for treatment.

(e) Direct Supervision – Supervision of subordinate personnel performing directed delegated actions subject to licensure pursuant to Chapter 486, Florida Statutes while the licensed supervisor is immediately physically available. On-site Supervision means direct supervision.

(f) General supervision – Supervision of a physical therapist assistant, other than by direct supervision, whereby the shall not require on-site supervision by the physical therapist. The physical therapist is shall be accessible at all times by two way communication, available, which enables the physical therapist to respond to an inquiry when made and to be readily available for consultation during the delivery of care, and is shall be within the same geographic location as the physical therapist assistant.

(g) Program Plan – The establishment of objectives (goals) and specific remediation techniques.

(h) Standards – Conditions and performances which are essential for quality physical therapy service and patient care.

(i) Unlicensed personnel – Any individual, working or volunteering in a physical therapy setting, not holding a current license as a physical therapist or physical therapist

assistant.

(2) Physical Therapy Personnel Responsibilities In General. to Patients' Rights and Dignity. ~~(a) Physical therapy is a profession involving skilled practice of patient care. The delegation of tasks and direction of actions to subordinates is a serious responsibility for the physical therapist. The primary concern of the physical therapist and physical therapist assistant is always the safety, well being, and best interest of the patient,~~ (b) ~~Physical therapists and physical therapist assistants shall~~ who must therefore recognize and carry out services consistent with legal rights and personal dignity of the patient. Accordingly, it is the responsibility of all physical therapists and physical therapist assistants to:

~~(a) the licensee to~~ Communicate effectively to the patient the treatment evaluation process and techniques to be used in any procedures before beginning treatment and anytime during the course of the treatment process.

~~(b)(c) Physical therapists and physical therapist assistants shall~~ Safeguard the confidentiality of information and require written consent from the patient or legally authorized representative prior to releasing information to a third party not involved in the actual care.

~~(c)(d) Physical therapists and physical therapist assistants shall~~ Avoid acts which blatantly disregard a patient's modesty and ~~shall~~ neither suggest nor engage in sexual activities with patients under their care.

~~(d)(e) Physical therapists and physical therapist assistants shall not~~ Neither use nor participate in the use of any form of communication containing false, fraudulent, misleading, deceptive, unfair or sensational statement or claim, nor use bribery in any form, nor use false advertising, nor misrepresentation of services or self, nor engage in other unprofessional conduct, including, but not limited to,

1. Inaccurately recorded, falsified, or altered patient records;
2. Falsely representing or misrepresenting facts on an application for employment;
3. Impersonating or acting as a proxy for an applicant in any examination for certification or registration;
4. Impersonating another certified or registered practitioner or permitting another to use his or her license for the purpose of practicing physical therapy or receiving compensation;
5. Providing false or incorrect information regarding the status of licensure.

~~(e)(f) Physical therapists and physical therapist assistants shall~~ Not exploit the patient or client for the financial gain of the licensee or a third party.

~~(f)(g) Physical therapists and physical therapist assistants must~~ Practice physical therapy with that level of care, skill, and treatment which is recognized by a reasonably prudent similar physical therapy practitioner as being acceptable under similar conditions and circumstances.

(3) Physical Therapist Responsibilities. All physical therapists shall:

(a) ~~The physical therapist shall~~ Be professionally responsible for providing a referring practitioner, or a practitioner of record, with any information which will assist in the determination of an accurate medical diagnosis.

(b) ~~The physical therapist shall~~ Not implement any plan of care, that, in the physical therapist's judgement, is contraindicated. If the plan of care was requested by a referring practitioner, the physical therapist shall immediately notify the referring practitioner that he is not going to follow the request and the reasons for such refusal.

(c) ~~The physical therapist shall~~ Not delegate any function or task which requires the skill, knowledge, and judgment of the physical therapist.

(d) ~~The physical therapist shall~~ Assume the responsibility for assessing the patient, identifying the level of acuity of illness, planning the patient's treatment program, and

implementing and directing the program.

(e) ~~The physical therapist shall h~~Hold primary responsibility for physical therapy care rendered under his direction and shall be available for consultation at all times.

(f) ~~Ensure that the following professional activities are only performed by the The Physical therapist~~ professional responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

1. Interpretation of the practitioner's referral.
2. Provision of the initial physical therapy assessment of the patient.
3. Initial Identification of and documentation of precautions, special problems, contraindications.
4. Development of a treatment plan including the long and short term goals.
5. Implementation of or directing implementation of the treatment plan.
6. Direction-Delegation of appropriate tasks.
7. Direction and supervision of supportive staff in a manner appropriate for the patient's individual needs.
8. Reassessment of the patient in reference to goals and, when necessary, modification of the treatment plan.

~~9. Collaboration with members of the health care team when appropriate.~~

(g) ~~Physical therapists, w~~When participating in student and/or trainee programs, shall assure that the programs are approved or pending approval by the appropriate accrediting agency recognized by the Council on Postsecondary Accreditation ~~(formerly the National Commission on Accreditation and the Federation of Regional Accrediting Commissions of Higher Education)~~ or the United States Department of Education and provide on-site supervision when students are performing patient care activities.

(h) ~~Physical therapists shall k~~Keep written medical records justifying the course of treatment of the patient, including, but not limited to, initial physical therapy assessment, plan of treatment, treatment notes, progress notes, examination results, test results, and discharge summary.

(4) The Physical Therapist Assistant Responsibilities. All physical therapist assistants shall:

(a) ~~The physical therapist assistant shall n~~Not initiate or change treatment without the prior assessment and approval of the physical therapist.

(b) During the delivery of physical therapy care to a patient who is an inpatient in a hospital, or who is in the acute phase of injury or illness, ~~the physical therapist assistant shall~~ not provide services to patient, unless the physical therapist is readily and physically available to provide consultation.

(c) ~~The physical therapist assistant shall n~~Not carry out treatment procedures detrimental to the patient or for which the assistant is not qualified.

(d) ~~The physical therapist assistant shall r~~Report all untoward patient responses or change in medical status to the physical therapist.

(e) ~~The physical therapist assistant shall r~~Refer inquiries regarding patient prognosis to the physical therapist.

(f) ~~The physical therapist assistant shall d~~Discontinue immediately any treatment procedures which in the assistant's judgment appear to be harmful to the patient and shall report them to the physical therapist.

(g)When participating in student and/or trainee programs assure that the programs are approved or pending approval by the appropriate accrediting agency recognized by the Council on Postsecondary Accreditation or the United States Department of Education and provide on-site supervision when students are performing patient care activities.

(5) Physical Therapist – Physical Therapist Assistant Responsibilities and Supervisory Relationships.

(a) Regardless of the setting, physical therapists and physical therapist assistants shall abide by all Federal and State Laws and regulations related to the particular site of practice.

(b) During an acute phase of injury or illness, or while the patient is an inpatient in a hospital, the physical therapist shall be readily and physically available for consultation to the physical therapist assistant.

(c) Delivery of Care:

1. During the delivery of physical therapy care by the physical therapist assistant to patients who are not inpatients in a hospital, or who are not in the acute phase of injury or illness, the physical therapist shall be accessible at all times by telecommunication and shall be within the same geographic location as the assistant.

2. The physical therapist ~~shall~~ should be readily available to the physical therapist assistant with emphasis placed on directing the assistant through frequent reporting, both verbal and written and frequent observations of the care rendered to the patient.

(d) The physical therapist shall not delegate portions of the skilled physical therapy functions or tasks to any lesser trained health personnel than the physical therapist assistant.

(6) The school setting. The physical therapist shall keep abreast of special knowledge and skills implicit in school settings and shall practice in accordance with the previous stated standards.

~~(7) Pre-1973 Physical Therapy "Aide." No person licensed pursuant to Chapter 486, Florida Statutes, shall delegate any acts that are the subject of licensure pursuant to Chapter 486, Florida Statutes, except to a unless the person who is licensed pursuant to that chapter, or unless the person was performing, prior to the 1973 amendments to that chapter, "duties" which are now acts subject to licensure. Furthermore, any unlicensed person currently being delegated and performing acts which are subject to licensure, by reason of having performed them prior to 1973, shall comply with Rule 64B17-6.001, F.A.C., except that, in all practice settings, such person shall perform such acts only under the direct supervision of the physical therapist.~~

(8 ~~7~~) Unlicensed Supportive Personnel may be utilized to help in the treatment being provided by a licensed physical therapist or licensed physical therapist assistant. Such personnel shall perform such acts only under the direct supervision of a physical therapist or physical therapist assistant.

MOTION: Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve the verbally amended language and directed counsel to proceed with rule making procedures. The motion was seconded by Dr. Petraglia and carried 5/0.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revision will have an adverse impact on small business. The board answered, no.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revisions are likely to directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs to any entity (including government) in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate in Florida within 1 year after the implementation of the rule. The board answered, no.

Tab 4 64B17-6.002 General Supervision of Physical Therapists by Physicians; Eligibility; Requirements

In response to the rules reduction project, Board counsel has proposed the below amendments.

64B17-6.002 General—Supervision of Physical Therapist Assistants by Physicians; Eligibility; Requirements.

~~(1) A physical therapist assistant employed by a board certified orthopedic physician or physiatrist, or a chiropractic physician certified in physiotherapy, shall be under the general supervision of a physical therapist. A physical therapist assistant employed by any physician other than as identified above board certified orthopedic physician or physiatrist or a chiropractic physician certified in physiotherapy shall be under the direct onsite supervision of a physical therapist.~~

~~(2) In order to insure adequate supervision of the physical therapist assistant by the supervising physical therapist w~~Where general supervision is permitted, there shall be an written agreement between the board certified orthopedic physician or physiatrist or chiropractic physician and the supervising physical therapist, specifying the duties responsibilities of both parties. The Agreement must contain, at a minimum, which includes at least the minimum standards of physical therapy practice specified by contained in Rule 64B17-6.001, F.A.C.

~~(3) The physical therapist assistant shall report all untoward patient responses, inquiries regarding patient prognosis, or the discontinuation of any treatment procedure, to the physical therapist and to the employing physician board certified orthopedic physician or physiatrist or chiropractic physician certified in physiotherapy.~~

MOTION: Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve the verbally amended language and directed counsel to proceed with rule making procedures. The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 5/0.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revision will have an adverse impact on small business. The board answered, no.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revisions are likely to directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs to any entity (including government) in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate in Florida within 1 year after the implementation of the rule. The board answered, no.

Tab 5 64B17-6.0042 Medical Records

In response to the rules reduction project, Board counsel has proposed the below - amendments to combine and streamline Rules 64B17-6.0042 and 64B17-6.0044.

64B17-6.0042 Medical Records of Deceased, Relocating, or Terminating Practice Physical Therapists or Physical Therapist Assistants.

(1) Licensees shall retain medical records as long as needed not only to serve and protect clients/patients, but also to protect themselves against adverse actions. This rule sets forth standards which, if not met, will constitute a violation of Sections 456.058 and 486.125, Florida Statutes, and will subject licensees to disciplinary proceedings. ~~The times specified in subsection (2) below may well be less than the length of time necessary for protecting the licensees. Furthermore, the times stated may fall below the community standards for retention in specific communities and practice settings and for specific client/patient needs. For these purposes, licensees may wish to seek advice from private legal counsel or their insurance carrier.~~

(2) Licensees relocating or terminating practice. Each licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~ engaged in practice, who maintains the responsibility for client/patient medical records, shall, when terminating or relocating the practice, notify each client/patient of such termination or relocation. Such notification shall consist of at,

a minimum, ~~least~~ causing to be published, in the newspaper of greatest general circulation in each county in which the licensee practices or practiced, a notice which shall contain the date of termination or relocation and an address at which medical records may be obtained. Such notice shall be published no less than 4 times over a period of at least 4 weeks. In addition, the licensee shall place in a conspicuous location in or on the facade of the licensee's office, a sign, announcing the termination or relocation of the practice. The sign shall be placed at least thirty (30) days prior to the termination or relocation and shall remain until the date of termination or relocation. Both the notice and the sign shall advise the clients/patients of their opportunity to transfer or receive their medical records. ~~Furthermore, Each~~ such licensee shall ensure ~~see~~ that client/patient records are maintained and may be obtained by the client/patient for a minimum of two (2) years after the termination or relocation of practice.

(3) Deceased Physical Therapists or Physical Therapist Assistants.

(a) Each licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~ engaged in practice, who maintains the responsibility for client/ patient medical records, shall ensure that the executor, administrator, personal representative or survivor of such licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~ shall arrange to maintain those medical records in existence upon the death of the licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~ for a period of at least two (2) years from the date of the death of the licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~.

(b) Within one (1) month from the date of death of the licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~, the executor, administrator, personal representative or survivor shall cause to be published in the newspaper of greatest general circulation in the county where the licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~ practiced, a notice indicating to the clients/patients of the deceased licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~ that the licensee's medical records are available to the clients/patients or their duly constituted representative from a specific person at a certain location.

(c) At the conclusion of a 22-month period of time from the date of death of the licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~ or thereafter, the executor, administrator, personal representative or survivor shall cause to be published once during each week for four (4) consecutive weeks, in the newspaper of greatest general circulation in the county where the licensee ~~physical therapist or physical therapist assistant~~ practiced, a notice indicating to the clients/patients of the deceased licensee that client/patient records will be disposed of or destroyed one (1) month or later from the last day of the fourth week of publication of notice.

(4) All client/patient ~~Any~~ records shall be disposed of in a manner that will ~~would~~ secure the permanent confidentiality of records.

MOTION: Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve the proposed language and directed counsel to proceed with rule making procedures. The motion was seconded by Dr. Pabian and carried 5/0.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revision will have an adverse impact on small business. The board answered, no.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revisions are likely to directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs to any entity (including government) in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate in Florida within 1 year after the implementation of the rule. The board answered, no.

Tab 6 64B17-6.005 Costs of Duplicating Medical Records

In response to the rules reduction project, Board counsel has proposed the below amendments.

64B17-6.005 Costs of Duplicating Medical Records.

(1) Any person licensed pursuant to Chapter 486, Florida Statutes, required to furnish release copies of reports or patient medical records, or make reports or records available for digital scanning ~~may condition such release upon payment, but~~ by the requesting party shall charge no more than of the actual cost of copying, including reasonable staff time ~~reasonable costs of reproducing the records.~~

~~(2) Reasonable costs of reproducing copies of written or typed documents or reports shall not be more than the following:~~

~~(a) For the first 25 pages, the cost shall be \$1.00 per page.~~

~~(b) For each page in excess of 25 pages, the cost shall be \$.25 per page.~~

~~(3) Reasonable costs of reproducing x-rays and such other kinds of records shall be the actual costs. "Actual costs" means the cost of the material and supplies used to duplicate the record and the labor and overhead costs associated with the duplication.~~

MOTION: Dr. Petraglia made a motion to repeal Rule 64B17-6.005. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 5/0.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revision will have an adverse impact on small business. The board answered, no.

Board Counsel asked the Board if the proposed revisions are likely to directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs to any entity (including government) in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate in Florida within 1 year after the implementation of the rule. The board answered, no.

Tab 7 Comprehensive Rules Review Project

Mr. Harris recently completed the biennial comprehensive rules review. This involved a detailed analysis of each rule to determine the regulatory burden, and if the rule is justified and authorized by statute. Mr. Harris was responsible for answering a series of questions for each rule which was reviewed and approved by Dr. Petraglia.

Information was provided of the existing rule analyses for Rules 64B17-6.0042 and 64B17-6.0044.

REPORTS

Tab 8 Larry Harris, Assistant Attorney General

- Rules Report

Rule Number	Rule Title	Date Rule Language Approved by Board	Date Sent to OFARR	Rule Development Published	Notice Published	Adopted	Effective
64B17-2.007	Certification of Public Records	04/30/15	06/16/15	06/23/15	07/09/15 (anticipated)		
64B17-5.001	Requirements for Reactivation of an Inactive or Retired License	04/30/15	06/16/15	06/23/15	07/09/15 (anticipated)		
64B17-7.0027	Procedure for Compliance with Board Ordered Laws and Rules Exam	04/30/15	06/16/15	06/23/15	07/09/15 (anticipated)		
64B17-7.003	Reinstatement of Suspended and Restricted Licenses	04/30/15	06/16/15	06/23/15	07/09/15 (anticipated)		
64B17-9.001	Continuing Education	04/30/15	06/16/15	06/23/15	07/09/15 (anticipated)		
64B17-9.002	Performance of Pro Bono Services	04/30/15	06/16/15	06/23/15	07/09/15 (anticipated)		

Mr. Harris indicated Rule 64B17-2.007 will be withdrawn based on the Board's vote to repeal.

Mr. Harris shared with the Board concerns from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee (JAPC) regarding the new proposed Rule 64B17-9.002, Performance of Pro Bono Services.

After discussion the Board determined the rule would have low benefit and therefore decided to no longer move forward with rule making.

MOTION: Dr. Pabian made a motion to withdraw Rule 64B17-9.002. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 5/0.

Mr. Harris discussed the upcoming Annual Regulatory Plan. The Board delegated Dr. Petraglia to review and approve the plan prior to Mr. Harris' submission.

Tab 9 Chair/Vice Chair Report

- Dr. Gina Petraglia
- Christina Pettie

Dr. Tasso recently attended the FSBPT's Leadership Issues Forum. She provided a brief overview of the meeting. She also reviewed FSBPT's feature to determine pass/fail rates of the National Physical Therapy Exam broken down per each physical therapy and physical therapy assistant program in Florida.

The Board discussed their concerns with the low pass rate of students who attended Dade Medical College. Dr. Tasso will provide a letter to Senator Oscar Braynon, II who previously asked for the pass rate evidence.

Dr. Tasso will provide the draft letter during the August 7, 2015 meeting for the board to discuss.

Tab 10 Executive Director Report

- Cash Balance Report
- Board Expenditures

The above reports were presented as informational only.

APPLICANT/LICENSEE RATIFICATION LISTS

Tab 11 Ratification List for Approved Applicants

- Physical Therapist Applicants

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to ratify the list of physical therapists for licensure by examination/endorsement (Exhibit A), 231 in number starting with PT 30028 and ending with PT 30480. Upon successful completion of the National Physical Therapy Exam and/or the Florida Laws and Rules Exam, shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 5/0.

- Physical Therapist Assistant Applicants

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to ratify the list of physical therapists assistants for licensure by examination/endorsement (Exhibit B), 117 in number starting with PTA 25558 and ending with PTA 25761. Upon successful completion of the National Physical Therapy Exam and/or the Florida Laws and Rules Exam, shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 5/0.

NEW BUSINESS

Tab 12 Strategic/Long Range Planning

Lucy C. Gee, M.S., Division Director, has requested the profession representative attending the September 24, 2015 Board Chairs/Vice Chairs Annual Long-Range Planning Meeting be prepared to discuss strategic planning activities engaged in by the Board/Council.

Board members will receive a SWOT analysis survey from the department so that input can be provided.

OLD BUSINESS

Tab 13 Board of Physical Therapy Minutes

- April 30-May 1, 2015 Minutes

MOTION: Dr. Petraglia made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected. The motion was seconded by Mr. Chenoweth and carried 5/0.

OTHER BUSINESS AND INFORMATION

Tab 14 Exam Statistics

This was presented as informational.

Tab 15 Staff Recognition

This was presented as informational.

Tab 16 FSBPT Annual Meeting

Each year, the Federation of State Boards of Physical Therapy (FSBPT) invites a host state to give a short welcome at the beginning of the annual meeting. This year's welcome will be on Friday, October 16, 2015 at 8:00 a.m.

Dr. Tasso, voting delegate, has agreed to do the welcome by presenting a Power Point on the people and places of Florida.

Tab 17 Continuing Education Renewal Procedures

Over the past two years MQA has been engaging in outreach efforts to boards, councils, licensees and professional associations informing them that at an upcoming renewal cycle licensees will be required to demonstrate in CEBroker (the authorized vendor that tracks continuing education hours) that they have the appropriate type/amount of continuing education before a license can be renewed. If the appropriate CE is not verified by CEBroker then the licensee is prevented by the renewal system from renewing the license.

Recently, staff was informed that certain professions, including physical therapy, will not be taking part in the new mandatory reporting because their specific practice acts do not provide statutory authority for this new process. Licensees must still complete their CE requirements prior to renewing.

Section 486.109(4), F.S. only authorizes random audits by the department:

486.109 Continuing education.—

- (1) The board shall require licensees to periodically demonstrate their professional competence as a condition of renewal of a license by completing 24 hours of continuing education biennially.
- (2) The board shall approve only those courses sponsored by a college or university which provides a curriculum for training physical therapists or physical therapist assistants which is accredited by, or has status with an accrediting agency approved by, the United States Department of Education or courses sponsored or approved by the Florida Physical Therapy Association or the American Physical Therapy Association.
- (3) The board may make exceptions from the requirements of this section in emergency or hardship cases as provided by rule.
- (4) Each licensee shall be responsible for maintaining sufficient records in a format as determined by rule which shall be subject to a random audit by the department to assure compliance with this section.

(5) The board may adopt rules within the requirements of this section that are necessary for its implementation.

MQA's communications office is developing a memo to communicate this information to licensees and the physical therapy community.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:20 p.m.

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE
BOARD OF PHYSICAL THERAPY
GENERAL BUSINESS MEETING
GENERAL RULES REVIEW
August 6-7, 2015
MINUTES**

**DoubleTree by Hilton Deerfield Beach
100 Fairway Drive
Deerfield Beach, FL 33441
(954) 427-7700**

Participants in this public meeting should be aware that these proceedings are being recorded and that an audio file of the meeting will be posted to the Board's website.

August 7, 2015 – 8:00 a.m.

The minutes reflect the actual sequence of events rather than the original agenda order.

Call the Meeting to Order and Roll Call:

Dr. Gina Petraglia, Chair, called the general business meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. Those present for all or part of the meeting, included the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT

Dr. Gina Petraglia, Chair, PT, DPT, COS-C, CEEAA
Ms. Christina Pettie, Vice Chair, PT, MHA
Dr. Kay Tasso, PT, PhD, PCS
Mr. Steve Chenoweth, PT
Dr. Patrick Pabian, PT, DPT, SCS, OCS, CSCS

BOARD COUNSEL

Larry Harris, Board Counsel,
Assistant Attorney General Office

STAFF PRESENT

Allen Hall, Executive Board Director
Jessica Sapp, Program Administrator

Court Reporter

Nick Bruens
Official Reporting Services, LLC
524 S Andrews Avenue, Suite 302N
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301
(954) 467-8204

DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS

MOTION FOR SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

**Tab 1 Michael Patrick Smith, PT14349
Case No. 2014-05394
(PCP – Tasso, Clendenin, Kuhns/Petraglia, Candela, Watson)**

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

Dr. Petraglia and Dr. Tasso were recused due to participation in the Probable Cause Panel.

Ms. Gilani summarized the case for the Board. Respondent was charged with the following violation: Section 486.125(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2013), and 64B17-

6.001(2)(b), Florida Administration Code (2013), by failing to maintain acceptable standards of physical therapy.

The case was presented as a Settlement Agreement that would impose the following:

- Reprimand
- Fine of \$1000.00 to be paid within three (3) years of the filing of the Final Order.
- Costs of \$2,493.82 to be paid within three (3) years of the filing of the final Order.
- Completion of two Board approved live continuing education courses that address ethics and/or professionalism in the practice of physical therapy including professional boundaries and informed consent of the patient. The courses must be a minimum of two hours each. Respondent will have sixty (60) days of the filing of the Final Order to submit a course for Board approval. Dr. Pabian will be the delegate to approve the courses. Respondent will have (1) year to provide proof of completion of the Board approved course. These courses will be in addition to the Respondents renewal requirements.

MOTION: After discussion, Ms. Pettie made a motion to accept the Settlement Agreement as verbally amended. The motion was seconded by Dr. Pabian and carried 3/0.

Mr. Smith accepted the additional continuing education terms of the Settlement.

**Tab 2 Michelle Vermeulen, PTA16489
Case No. 2014-18898
(PCP – Petraglia, Clendenin, Hughes)**

Dr. Petraglia was recused due to participation in the Probable Cause Panel.

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Ms. Vermeulen was represented by Ms. Ritisha K. Chhaganlel, Esq.

Ms. Gilani summarized the case for the Board. Respondent was charged with the following violations: **Count I:** Section 486.125(1)(a), Florida Statutes (2014), by being unable to practice physical therapy with reasonable skill and safety to patients by reason of illness or use of alcohol, drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition. **Count II:** Section 486.125(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2014), by intentionally violating 456.072(1)(m) by making deceptive, untrue, and fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of a profession or employing a trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a profession.

The case was presented as a Settlement Agreement that would impose the following:

- Costs of \$1,360.54 to be paid within two (2) years of the filing of the Final Order.
- Suspension from practice until PRN contact executed and PRN determines Respondent is safe to resume practice as a physical therapist assistant.

MOTION: After discussion, Ms. Pettie made a motion to reject the Settlement Agreement and offer the following counter:

- Costs of \$1,360.54 to be paid within two (2) years of the filing of the Final Order.
- Suspension from practice until PRN contact executed and PRN determines Respondent is safe to resume practice as a physical therapist assistant.
- Completion of the Physical Therapist Assistant Competency and Skills checklist and Basic Home Health Standards checklist immediately before returning to practice. The competency checklists must be completed by the supervising physical therapist to ensure home health standards are being met.
- In addition, completion of the competency checklists shall be completed by the supervising physical therapist within six (6) months of returning to practice and continued annually during the duration of the PRN contract. All results are to be reported to the Department's compliance officer.

Respondent and the Department accepted the orally amended Settlement Agreement. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT

**Tab 3 Kim Nobles, PT17152
 Case No. 2014-11706
 (PCP – Petraglia, Candela, Watson)**

Dr. Petraglia was recused due to participation in the Probable Cause Panel.

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Ms. Nobles was represented by Jeffrey S. Howell, Esq.

Ms. Gilani summarized the case for the Board. Respondent was charged with the following violation: Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2013) for being found guilty of a crime which relates to the practice of physical therapy.

MOTION: Dr. Tasso made a motion to find that the Respondent was properly served and has requested an informal hearing. The motion was seconded by Mr. Chenoweth and carried 40.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt the findings of fact as set forth in the Administrative Complaint. The motion was seconded by Mr. Chenoweth and carried 4/0.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt all materials and addendums into evidence. The motion was second by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt the conclusions of law as set forth in the Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Chapters 486 and 456, Florida Statutes. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to impose the following penalties:

- Reprimand
- \$1,000 fine, to be paid within six (6) years of the filing of the Final Order.
- Costs of \$92.91 to be paid within six (6) months of the filing of the Final Order.

The Board went outside the disciplinary guidelines based on mitigating factors of the Respondent's positive licensure history with no prior discipline or criminal history and the effect of the penalty on the Respondent's livelihood.

The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 4/0.

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FINAL ORDER BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT

**Tab 4 Sandor Eduardo Guillen, PTA18918
Case No. 2014-09125
(PCP – Petraglia, Clendenin, Hughes)**

Dr. Petraglia was recused due to participation in the Probable Cause Panel.

Respondent was not present nor sworn in by the court reporter.

Ms. Gilani summarized the case for the Board. Respondent was charged with the following violations: **Count I:** Section 486.125(1)(k) through a violation of 456.072(1)(c) Florida Statutes (2013), by being found guilty of a crime which relates to the practice of physical therapy or the ability to practice physical therapy. **Count II:** Section 486.125(1)(k) through a violation of 456.072(1)(k) Florida Statutes (2013), by failing to perform the statutory duty to provide information and render reasonable assistance when the Respondent was involved in a car accident resulting in injury or death. **Count III:** Section 486.125(1)(k) through a violation of 456.072(1)(x) Florida Statutes (2013), by failing to report within thirty days after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nolo contendere to, regardless of the adjudication and jurisdiction.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to find that the Respondent was properly served and has waived his right to a formal hearing. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt all materials and addendums into evidence. The motion was second by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt the findings of fact as set forth in the Administrative Complaint. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt the conclusions of law as set forth in the Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Chapters 486 and 456, Florida Statutes. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to impose the following penalties:

- Revocation

The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 4/0.

**Tab 5 Christian Alejandro Coloma-Castro, PT13233
Case No. 2013-10520
(PCP – Petraglia, Watson, Hughes)**

Dr. Petraglia was recused due to participation in the Probable Cause Panel.

Respondent was not present nor sworn in by the court reporter.

Ms. Gilani summarized the case for the Board. Respondent was charged with the following violation: Section 486.125(1)(k), and 456.072(1)(II) Florida Statutes (2012) by being convicted of crimes related to health care fraud.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to find that the Respondent was properly served and has waived his right to a formal hearing. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt all materials and addendums into evidence. The motion was second by Dr. Tasso.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt the findings of fact as set forth in the Administrative Complaint. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to adopt the conclusions of law as set forth in the Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Chapters 486 and 456, Florida Statutes. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 4/0.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to impose the following penalties:

- Revocation

The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 4/0.

REPORT

Tab 6 Prosecuting Attorney Report

Total cases open/active in PSU:	39
Cases in EAU:	3
Cases under legal review:	23
Cases where PC recommendation made:	8
Total cases where PC has been found:	3
Cases in holding status:	0
Cases awaiting supplemental investigation:	3

Cases pending before DOAH:	1
Cases in intake status:	0
Agendaed for current or future Board Meeting:	4

MOTION: Ms. Pettie made a motion to continue prosecuting cases that exceed one year. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 5/0.

PETITION FOR DECLARATORY STATEMENT

Tab 7 Everett Harris

- Rule 64B17-6.001, F.A.C.

Mr. Harris was present and sworn in by the court reporter. He has filed a petition seeking a declaratory statement for Rule 64B17-6.001, F.A.C. He is currently a Florida licensee and is seeking guidance regarding physical therapists and medications in the Home Health Care Setting.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Petraglia made a motion to deny the Petition for Declaratory Statement of Rule 64B17-6.001, F.A.C due to failure to state particular facts and circumstances. The motion was seconded by Mr. Chenoweth and carried 5/0.

PETITION FOR VARIANCE OR WAIVER OF RULE

Tab 8 Hector Manual Rodriguez

- Petition for Waiver of Rule 64B17-3.001, F.A.C.
- Application by Examination

Mr. Rodriguez was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

Mr. Rodriguez filed a petition for waiver of Rule 64B17-3.001. He requested permission to submit his student copies of proof of education to the credentialing agency. Due to permanent closure of Mr. Rodriguez’s school, he is unable to obtain the official copies of his transcripts.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to deny the Petition for Variance or Waiver of Rule 64B17-3.001. The motion was seconded by Mr. Chenoweth and carried 5/0.

The Board allowed Mr. Rodriguez to withdraw his application.

Tab 9 Ivis Garcia

- Petition for Waiver of Rule 64B17-3.001, F.A.C.
- Application by Examination

Ms. Garcia was present and sworn in by the court reporter. A translator was present on behalf of Ms. Garcia.

Ms. Garcia filed a petition for waiver of Rule 64B17-3.001. She has requested a waiver from the education requirements by requesting the Board to approve her documentation translated by Josef Silny and Associates, Inc., to be utilized by the FCCPT for the purpose determining education equivalency.

After discussion Ms. Garcia withdrew her petition.

The Board allowed Ms. Garcia to withdraw her application.

Tab 10 Edwin James

- Petition for Waiver of Rule 64B17-3.003, F.A.C.
- Application by Endorsement

Mr. James was not present nor represented by counsel.

Mr. James filed a petition for waiver of Rule 64B17-3.003. Mr. James has requested a waiver from the education requirements for a credential evaluation completed on the appropriate coursework tool adopted by the Federation of State Boards of Physical Therapy (FSBPT). He requested consideration of his Michigan evaluation, which does not satisfy the requirements of Florida's Rule 64B17-3.003.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to deny the Petition for Variance or Waiver of Rule 64B17-3.003 and to deny his application for licensure by endorsement due to not demonstrating compliance with the underlying statute. The motion was seconded by Dr. Petraglia and carried 5/0.

PERSONAL APPEARANCE PURSUANT TO §456.013(3)(c), F.S.

Tab 11 David Root, PT by Endorsement

Mr. Root was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

He was asked to appear to discuss his discipline history.

MOTION: After discussion, Ms. Pettie made a motion to approve Mr. Root's application for licensure and to certify him to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Dr. Pabian and carried 5/0.

Tab 12 Jared Wichers, PT by Endorsement

Mr. Wichers was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

He was asked to appear to discuss his criminal history.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve Mr. Wichers' application for licensure and to certify him to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Dr. Pabian and carried 5/0.

Tab 13 Sumy Chalil, PT by Endorsement

Ms. Chalil was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

She was asked to appear due to her examination history.

Ms. Chalil has failed the National Physical Therapy Examination five times, passing on the sixth attempt. Per Rule 64B17-3.003, F.A.C. An applicant who has failed to pass the NPTE for physical therapists by or on the fifth attempt, regardless of the jurisdiction through which the examination was taken, is precluded from licensure.

The board allowed Ms. Chalil to withdraw her application.

Tab 14 William Daniels, PT by Examination with Temporary Permit

Mr. Daniels was present and sworn in by the court reporter. He was represented by Michael Burman, Esq.

He was asked to appear to discuss his criminal and personal history.

Dr. Tasso disclosed her position as an adjunct faculty member at NOVA in Tampa but was able to be fair and impartial in discussing this case as she does not have personal knowledge of this individual.

Mr. Daniels appeared before the Board at the February 2015 meeting. His application was approved with conditions, pending compliance with PRN. Mr. Daniels has not complied with PRN and has asked the Board to reconsider his application and allow him to withdraw.

Professionals Resources Network (PRN) addressed the board.

MOTION: Dr. Tasso made a motion to vacate the Notice of Intent to Approve Licensure with Conditions and allow Mr. Daniels to voluntarily withdraw his application. The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 5/0.

Tab 15 Leah Crawford, PT by Examination with Temporary Permit

Ms. Crawford was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

Ms. Crawford applied for initial licensure and failed to disclose her complete criminal history.

Her criminal history was cleared per the board's conviction record guidelines and she was approved for testing. Upon unsuccessful completion of the laws exam, Ms. Crawford disclosed an additional charge.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Petraglia made a motion to approve Ms. Crawford's application for licensure and to certify her to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and the National Physical Therapy Exam upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Dr. Tasso and carried 5/0.

Tab 16 Julian Bailey, PT by Examination

Mr. Bailey was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

He was asked to appear to discuss his criminal history.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Petraglia made a motion to approve Mr. Bailey's application for licensure and to certify him to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and the National Physical Therapy Exam upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 5/0.

Tab 17 Ya-ling Hansen, PT by Examination

Ms. Hansen was not present nor represented by counsel.

She was asked to appear due to her education history.

Per 64B17-3.001, Ms. Hansen does not meet the education requirements as she is lacking professional education credits.

The board allowed Ms. Hansen to withdraw her application.

Tab 18 Glenda Gail Loo, PT by Examination

Ms. Loo was not present nor represented by counsel.

She was asked to appear due to her education history.

Per 64B17-3.001, Ms. Loo does not meet the education requirements as she is lacking required professional and general education credits.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Petraglia made a motion to deny her application due to not meeting the requirements in Rule 64B17-3.001; however the denial is suspended to allow the applicant ten (10) days to withdraw her application. The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 5/0.

Tab 19 Mitra Eslami, PT by Examination

Ms. Eslami was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Her husband was also present and sworn in by the court reporter.

She was asked to appear due to her education history.

Dr. Tasso disclosed her position as an adjunct faculty member at NOVA in Tampa but was able to be fair and impartial in discussing this case as she does not have personal knowledge of this individual.

Ms. Eslami appeared before the board and was approved with conditions on May 13, 2011. The condition was to complete 15 hours of continuing education in Geriatrics, which was completed on December 13, 2011. She failed to obtain a license and her application expired.

Per 64B17-3.001, Ms. Eslami does not meet the education requirements as she is lacking required professional education credits.

The Board reviewed Ms. Eslami's independent study on Geriatrics from Howard University and determined this would fulfill her deficiency for this course.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve Ms. Eslami's application for licensure due to significant and extreme extraordinary circumstances with the following conditions:

- Completion of the two deficient courses in Community Health and Administration within eighteen (18) months or Ms. Eslami's application will be denied.
- Courses must be submitted to the board and approved per the Education Liaison.
- Courses must be complete before applicant may sit for the National Physical Therapy Exam and the Florida laws and rules exam.

The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 3/2. Dr. Petraglia and Mr. Chenoweth opposed.

Tab 20 Anhnhi Tran, PT by Examination

Ms. Tran was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

She was asked to appear to discuss her criminal and personal history.

Dr. Tasso disclosed her position as an adjunct faculty member at NOVA in Tampa but was able to be fair and impartial in discussing this case as she does not have personal knowledge of this individual.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve Ms. Tran's application for licensure and to certify her to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and the National Physical Therapy Exam upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Dr. Petraglia and carried 5/0.

Tab 21 Yano Flores Rodriguez, PTA by Examination

Mr. Rodriguez was not present nor sworn in by the court reporter.

He was asked to appear to discuss his criminal history.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to deny his application per Section 456.0635(2)(a) as Mr. Rodriguez is not eligible for licensure. The motion was seconded by Mr. Chenoweth and carried 5/0.

Tab 22 Michael McGlynn, PTA by Examination

Mr. McGlynn was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Mr. McGlynn's father Jim McGlynn was also present and sworn in by the court reporter.

He was asked to appear to discuss his criminal history.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve Mr. McGlynn' s application for licensure and to certify him to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and the National Physical Therapy Exam upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Dr. Pabian and carried 5/0.

Tab 23 Darrin Brooks, PTA by Examination with Temporary Permit

Mr. Brooks was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

He was asked to appear to discuss his criminal and personal history.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve Mr. Brooks' application for licensure and to certify him to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and the National Physical Therapy Exam upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Dr. Petraglia and carried 5/0.

Tab 24 Mark Manning, PTA by Endorsement

Mr. Manning was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

He was asked to appear to discuss his criminal history.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve Mr. Manning's application for licensure and to certify him to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 5/0.

Tab 25 Paul Hagan, PTA by Endorsement

Mr. Hagan was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

He was asked to appear to discuss his personal history.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to approve Mr. Hagan's application for licensure and to certify him to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 5/0.

Tab 27 Christina Greene, PTA by Endorsement

Ms. Greene was present and sworn in by the court reporter.

She was asked to appear to discuss her criminal history.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Petraglia made a motion to approve Ms. Greene's application for licensure and to certify her to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam and upon a passing score on the exams shall be licensed. The motion was seconded by Ms. Pettie and carried 5/0.

REQUEST FOR CONSIDERATION OF EXEMPTION FOR DISQUALIFICATION FROM EMPLOYMENT

Tab 26 Axia Parker, PTA 13535

Ms. Parker was not present nor sworn in by the court reporter.

She submitted an application for Exemption from Disqualification to seek employment in a health care setting.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to grant Ms. Parker's exemption for disqualification from employment. The motion was seconded by Mr. Chenoweth and carried 5/0.

Tab 28 Manuelito Barrozo, PT 22225

Mr. Barrozo was not present nor sworn in by the court reporter.

He submitted an application for Exemption from Disqualification to seek employment in a health care setting.

Mr. Barrozo's application for an Exemption from Disqualification was heard at the February 13, 2015 meeting. His application was denied due to failing to demonstrate clear and convincing evidence of rehabilitation.

MOTION: After discussion, Dr. Tasso made a motion to deny Mr. Barrozo's exemption for disqualification from employment due to failure to demonstrate clear and convincing evidence of rehabilitation. The motion was seconded Dr. Petraglia and carried 5/0.

The board finalized their letter to Senator Oscar Braynon, II of the examination pass rates.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:03 p.m.

Exhibit A

Rank	License Nbr	Licensee Name	Educational Institution
PT	30028	Cappadona, Taryn Elise	University Of Alabama At Birmingham
PT	30101	Cowan, Nichole Rhae	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30178	Morgan, Kayli Ann	Franklin Pierce University
PT	30198	Bost, Bryan Charles	Military Licensee
PT	30199	Maxwell, Jillayne Maria	University Of North Dakota
PT	30200	Thompson, Karrie Parker	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30201	Pendleton, Emily Ann	Nova Southeastern University
PT	30202	Abrams, Judith Ann	Ithaca College
PT	30203	Bonasera, Kristin Louise	Boston University
PT	30204	Burns, Margaret Land	University Of North Florida
PT	30205	Deeck, Kimberly J	Thomas Jefferson University
PT	30206	Gream, Heather Leigh	University Of Kentucky
PT	30207	Fitzsimmons, Kelly Marie	University Of Maryland Eastern Shore
PT	30208	Poker, Russell Jay	Suny At Stony Brook
PT	30209	Chaukulkar, Maitreyee	Krishna College Of Physiotherapy
PT	30210	Swann, Steven Michael	University Of Maryland Eastern Shore
PT	30211	Ladislav, Bryan Joseph	Military Licensee
PT	30212	Lee, Ji Hwan	Yongin University
PT	30213	Wilt, Angela	Florida Gulf Coast University
PT	30214	Stern, Bezalel	Hunter College
PT	30215	Laino, Fil-Angelie Gonzales	Riverside College;Riverside College
PT	30216	Gandhi, Meghna	Illinois Institute Of Technology
PT	30217	Mathew, Nancy K	MGR Medical University
PT	30218	Hodge, Rolene J	Loma Linda University
PT	30219	Mathews, Sarah Smith	Medical College Of Georgia
PT	30220	Petre, Cristian R	University Of Connecticut
PT	30221	Guazon, Radeyn Chua	Riverside College
PT	30222	Syriac, Thomas	Alagappa University
PT	30223	Gilder, Flora Nalin	Mgh Institute Of Health Professions
PT	30224	Caraher, Matthew John	Suny Upstate Medical University
PT	30225	Bruck, Jennifer C	Rosalind Franklin University
PT	30226	Lacey, Michelle Eilene	Northern Arizona University
PT	30227	Johnson, Laurie G	University Of Texas Medical Branch
PT	30228	Travis, Beth Danielle	Ithaca College
PT	30229	Wahnish, Julie Ann Castro	Cebu Doctors University
PT	30230	Clark, Gabriel Michael	The Ohio State University
PT	30231	Sarbeck, Lindsay Wells	University Of Florida
PT	30232	Ballarta, Aldrin Escaner	Manila Central University
PT	30233	Dixon, Nicole R	Misericordia University
PT	30234	Cheeley, Ryan Blake	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30235	Brown, Shelley Ann	Springfield College
PT	30236	Baumgarten, Lester	University Of Wisconsin
PT	30237	Condon, Breanne	Chatham University
PT	30238	Alexander, Erik Daniel	University Of Miami
PT	30239	Krahn, Angela Marie	Carroll University
PT	30240	Landretti, Elizabeth Ann	College Of Saint Scholastica
PT	30241	Thanawala, Toshal	Texas Tech University

PT	30242	Hinders, Lisa	University At Buffalo
PT	30243	Cruz, Christian Mari Torres	Our Lady Of Fatima University
PT	30244	Morris, Lindsay Ann	Northeastern University
PT	30245	Puliyakote, Ambika Kunnath	Srinivas College Of Physiotherapy
PT	30246	Reinart, Carson Ilmar	Massachusetts Institute Of Health Professions
PT	30247	Razavi, Jessica Leila	St. Louis University
PT	30248	Cruz, Janine Judith Espiritu	Our Lady Of Fatima University
PT	30249	Naugler, Vicki Lynn	Temple University
PT	30250	Peterson, Megan Waite	University Of South Alabama

PT	30251	Barnes, Danielle Samon	Howard University
PT	30252	Scott, Brandi Nichole	University Of Oklahoma
PT	30253	Sclama, Robert Joseph Jr	The University Of Rhode Island
PT	30254	Thomas, Toni Y	Barry University
PT	30255	Smith, Marie Ellen	Simmons College
PT	30256	Owen, Kelli Lynn	East Carolina University
PT	30257	Gutknecht, Marissa Jean	Saint Ambrose University
PT	30258	Silvers, Christie	Liceo De Cagayan University
PT	30259	Bejemino, Ann Marie Quimsing	Riverside College
PT	30260	Ballesteros, Mark Samonte	De Los Santos College
PT	30261	Shipman, Camille Alberta	Univ. of South Alabama
PT	30262	Chamberlin, Nancy Rae	University Of Connecticut
PT	30263	Bharwani, Sameer Balram	University Of Indianapolis
PT	30264	McGinn, Mary Jane	Medical University Of South Carolina
PT	30265	Tolentino, Sharlyn	Our Lady Of Fatima University
PT	30266	Basile, Thomas David	Touro College
PT	30267	Nair, Prajakta Ganesh	Maharashtra University Of Health Sciences
PT	30268	Walling, Kyle Martin	Old Dominion University
PT	30269	Merkel, Anna Isabelle	University Of North Florida
PT	30270	Lewis, Elizabeth Louise	Mercer University
PT	30271	Loumeau, Michael	Virginia Commonwealth University
PT	30272	Eaddy, Tauna Nicole	Medical University Of South Carolina
PT	30273	Link, Angela Michelle	Drexel University
PT	30274	Trujillo, Arielle Christine	Florida International University
PT	30275	Oats, Judy Latoya	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30276	Thakore, Maulika Nirajkumar	Shreedevi College Of Physiotherapy
PT	30277	North, Brittany Nicole	Florida International University
PT	30278	Terrelonge, Kaye Lois	University Of The West Indies
PT	30279	Sapinoso, Francis Joel Cordez	Universidad De Sta Isabel
PT	30280	Relacion, Riza Jane Berosa	De La Salle Health Sciences
PT	30281	Patel, Nishit	Shri G T Sheth Medical Foundation
PT	30282	Hegerfeld, Abby Marie	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30283	Heslop, Avadene Sherrol	Florida A & M University
PT	30284	Purvis, Jennifer Annette	Marymount University
PT	30285	Canale, Robert Earp Jr	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30286	Magee, John Patrick	University Of Ulster
PT	30287	Nordby, Robert Wayne	Slippery Rock University

PT	30288	Frizelle, Paul	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30289	Bales, Jeremy Andrew	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30290	Vos, Smitha Liza	Loma Linda University
PT	30291	Thakore, Nirajkumar	Shreedevi College Of Physiotherapy
PT	30292	Kuo, Karen	Rutgers University
PT	30293	Arevalo, Anika Jordan	University Of Miami
PT	30294	Hall, Kathleen Perry	University Of Vermont
PT	30295	Engle, Jessica Kay	University Of Miami
PT	30296	Paff, Christina Leigh	Mount St. Joseph University
PT	30301	Klein, Daniel Peter	Stony Brook University
PT	30302	Husum, Patrick Raymond	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30303	Aquino, Pinky Gallardo	Lorma College
PT	30304	Granthon, Aldrin Hans	Florida International University
PT	30305	Yadagiri, Karthik	NTR University Of Health Sciences
PT	30306	Dalmaso, Anthony Joseph	California State University Fresno
PT	30307	Gottlieb, Jennifer Yell	East Carolina University
PT	30309	Shaffer, Lauren	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30310	Cheenath, Joyce Jacob	Utica College
PT	30311	Jensen, Christopher	California State University Long Beach
PT	30312	Lin, Joshua Nj	University Of Florida
PT	30313	Dalal, Dhara Bharat	Seton Hall University
PT	30317	Sharma, Deepa	Manipal Academy Of Higher Education

PT	30318	Hughey, Devin Marie	University Of Florida
PT	30319	Steiner, Lauren Ruth	University Of South Alabama
PT	30320	Weber, Warren James	Florida A&M University
PT	30324	Bekcan, Burak Ahmet	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30325	Pacho, Lauren	University Of Florida
PT	30326	Ortiz, Jorge	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30327	Trotter, Courtney	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30328	Bock, Kasi Lee	Saint Louis University
PT	30329	Cintron Burgos, Jose A	University Of Puerto Rico Med. Science Campus
PT	30330	Evans, Benjamin Harrison	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30333	Woodward, Sara Lynn	Duke University
PT	30334	Sabate, Carissa Belinda Banaag	Mindanao Sanitarium & Hospital College
PT	30335	Tucker, Ashley Michelle	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30336	Rauch, Kristin Michelle	Governors State University
PT	30337	Beatrous, Catherine Morales	Universidad Del Valle
PT	30338	Zych, Justin Andrew	Duke University
PT	30339	Rattansi, Saira Munaver	Des Moines University
PT	30340	Bailey, Kelly Crews	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30343	Comella, Lisa Marie	University Of Augustine For Health Sciences
PT	30344	Hayter, Chastity Deshawn	UT Southwestern School Of Health Professions
PT	30345	Hearn, Kelsey Lynn	Medical University Of South Carolina
PT	30346	Brown, Patrick	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30348	Olsheski, Rachel Marie	University Of Saint Augustine

PT	30349	Laxton, Brittany Ann	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30350	Conner, Leanna Louise Ray	University Of South Florida
PT	30352	Watson, Jennifer Nicole	Bellarmino University
PT	30353	Madsen, Benjamin Thomas	University Of North Florida
PT	30354	Painton, Ted Miller	Tennessee State University
PT	30358	Connolly, Robert Michael	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30359	Aguirre, Maria Angela	Colegio De Sta. Rosa
PT	30360	Lee, Kathleen Elizabeth	Old Dominion University
PT	30361	Badilla, Gladys Zamora	Laguna Northwestern College
PT	30362	Campbell, Crystle Taiyo	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30363	Mercado, Richie Cabanero	Southwestern University
PT	30364	Tenido, Galicano Baya	Univ Of Perpetual Help
PT	30365	Bayhon, Jeano Revelo	Misamis University
PT	30366	Crossland, Piper Laurel	University Of Oklahoma
PT	30368	Cabataan, Mary Ann Cerna	San Juan De Dios Educational Foundation
PT	30369	Rutherford, Kimberly Lynn	Texas Tech University
PT	30373	Cardinali, Marissa Lyn	Touro College
PT	30374	Garcia, Anthony Rogelio	University Of Nebraska Medical Center
PT	30377	Wink, Tiffany Lyn	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30380	Byrd, Susan C	Medical College Of Georgia
PT	30381	Scharpman, Tina Marie Arcala	University Of Maryland Baltimore
PT	30382	Schreiner, Andrew Raymond	University Of North Florida
PT	30383	Sahijram, Lena Manek	University Of Miami
PT	30385	Morgan, Kenneth Scot	New York Medical College
PT	30386	Gordon, Katrine Antoinette	Hahnemann University
PT	30387	Ixanov, Rustem	University Of California - San Francisco
PT	30391	Love, Scott Michael	Saint Francis University
PT	30392	Giannakopoulos, Catherine	Midwestern University
PT	30393	Green, Jeanne Seaman	Georgia Regents University
PT	30394	Lyphout, Karolyn Ann	St. Ambrose University
PT	30395	Brown, Dana Ann	Walsh University
PT	30398	Butterfield, Rachel	University Of North Florida
PT	30399	Jankowski, Kara Ann	University Of North Florida
PT	30400	Beyl, Joshua Robert	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30401	Asken, Tristen	University Of Miami
PT	30402	Carmel, Justin	University Of Saint Augustine

PT	30403	Carmel, Venessa Ruth	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30404	Dawson, Nicole Therese	Ohio University
PT	30411	Schildt, Erin Elyse	Indiana University
PT	30412	Leone, Joseph James	Drexel University
PT	30413	Fourie, Leigh-Anne	Rockhurst University
PT	30414	Aron, Miriam Rita	The Ohio State University
PT	30415	Auguste, Stendley Smyr	University Of Miami
PT	30419	Gambill, Tara Marie	Boston University
PT	30420	Miller, Elizabeth Ann	Medical University Of South Carolina
PT	30421	Santos, Pamela Mangiliman	University Of Santo Tomas
PT	30422	Cobelens, Katelyn	University Of Saint Augustine

PT	30423	Bogh, Marie Kathleen	Northwestern University
PT	30425	Scott, Eileen Gail	Quinnipiac University
PT	30426	Rowey, Meghan Elizabeth	Duke University
PT	30427	Thomas, William C	University Of Miami
PT	30428	Hickman, Jamette Christine	Tennessee State University
PT	30429	Morrison, Katherine Sarah	Washington University In St. Louis
PT	30430	Sahakian, Diana Fawzi	Northwestern University
PT	30431	Garcia, Sheila Maria	University Of Miami
PT	30432	Patel, Brijeshkumar Mansukhlal	Vikas College Of Physiotherapy
PT	30433	Mcgehee, Elizabeth Buice	Duke University
PT	30434	Reinisch, Aaron	University Of Miami
PT	30436	Eure, Cassie Leigh	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30437	Alexander, Eric Thomas	University Of Miami
PT	30440	Vashi, Pooja R	Spb Physiotherapy College
PT	30443	Badilla, Rey Christian Imperial	Universidad De Santa Isabel
PT	30445	Zillmann, Kurt Matthew	Ohio University School Of Physical Therapy
PT	30446	Ranagan, Brenda Marie	Nova Southeastern University
PT	30447	Yambert, Janelle	University Of South Florida
PT	30448	Mueller, Margaret Michele	Medical University Of South Carolina
PT	30449	Schneider, Cassandra Kai	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30450	Bruey, Cassandra Mary	Medical University Of South Carolina
PT	30451	Constandis, Andrea Marie	Seton Hall University
PT	30452	Vitente, Arvie Cayabyab	Angeles University Foundation
PT	30453	Sagarduy Sustacha, Beatriz	University Of Miami
PT	30454	Nelson, Allyson Leigh	University Of Saint Augustine
PT	30455	Palmer, Kenneth	Duke University
PT	30456	Lazdowski, Denise Marie	University Of New England
PT	30457	Pinili, Rommel	Emilio Aguinaldo College
PT	30458	Mason, Morgan	Elon University
PT	30463	Sisulak, Cynthia Ann	University Of Wisconsin
PT	30464	King, Kyle	Tennessee State University
PT	30465	Thayer, Heather	New York University
PT	30466	Acan, Banu Melissa	Baskent University
PT	30467	Vergara, Jenalyn Dimapilis	University Of Santo Thomas
PT	30468	Radlein, Melissa Lorraine	Loma Linda University
PT	30469	Garrido, Ramiro Alexander	Duke University
PT	30470	Loso, Megan Teresa	University Of Central Florida
PT	30471	Healy, Carol Jane	Dyouville College
PT	30472	Cruz Rosal, Marilyn C	Dominican College
PT	30473	Benito, Glenda Gaoiran	De Los Santos College
PT	30475	Khromchenko, Pavel	State University Of Ny At Stony Brook
PT	30476	Laudicina, Shayne Gregory	Alabama State University
PT	30477	Nemec, Cynthia Louise	Ohio State University
PT	30478	Gallardo, Naomi Arinez	World Citi Colleges
PT	30479	Ruiz, Jeffrey Thomas	University Of Miami
PT	30480	Jerrems, Jacqueline Suzanne	George Washington University
Total Records:	231		

Exhibit B

Rank	License Nbr	Licensee Name	Educational Institution
PTA	25558	Green, Lidia	Hodges University
PTA	25571	Gedeon, Gaetan L	Keiser University
PTA	25587	Maldonado, Jose Victor	Keiser University
PTA	25617	Zuluaga, Mauricio	Keiser University
PTA	25618	Rosado, Raquel	Herzing University
PTA	25619	Boaz, Danielle Louise	Professional Skills Institute
PTA	25621	Hoffman, Kelsi Ann	Central Penn College
PTA	25622	Caracci, Gina Marie	Pennsylvania State University
PTA	25623	Pena, Marlene	South University
PTA	25624	Murphy, Daniel Michael	Harcum College
PTA	25625	Desrosiers, Guerda	Polk State College
PTA	25626	Merchant, Jill Marie	North Shore Community College
PTA	25627	Copeland, Cherie Denise	State Technical College Of Missouri
PTA	25628	Warnick, Kimberly Lynn	Pierpont Community & Technical College
PTA	25629	Smith, Gena	Hodges University
PTA	25630	Mannino, Barbara L	South University
PTA	25632	Meyer, Kevin Charles	Colby Community College
PTA	25633	Ramirez, Nairoby	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25634	Henderson, Jason Craig	Keiser University
PTA	25635	Kress, Honey M	Indian River State College
PTA	25636	Emmons, Joseph Hall III	Pensacola State College
PTA	25637	Castillo-Villa, Dayanay	South University
PTA	25638	Ilagan, Richard Abrasaldo	College Of Central Florida
PTA	25639	Carvajal-Velazquez, Marlene	Polk State College
PTA	25640	Barnard, Matthew Ryan	Keiser University
PTA	25641	Ferrer, Aniley	Keiser University
PTA	25642	Carmenaty, Ireli	Keiser University
PTA	25643	Smith, Tiffany Nichole	College Of Central Florida
PTA	25644	Perez, Arliss K	Seminole State College Of Florida
PTA	25645	Anderson, James A	Keiser University
PTA	25646	Eisman, Cynthia Ann	Keiser University
PTA	25647	Clark, Jason Jay	College Of Central Florida
PTA	25648	Lawson, Lynette Rogers	Somerset Community College
PTA	25649	Lawson, Michael Lowell	Somerset Community College
PTA	25650	Tasset, Niurys	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25651	White, Elizabeth Joanne	South University
PTA	25652	Chanthabouasith, Roger	South University
PTA	25653	Barahona, Stephanie	South University
PTA	25654	Muhammad, Umar	Keiser University
PTA	25655	Stastny, Kay Lynn	Gateway Community College
PTA	25656	De La Cruz, Vladimir	Dade Medical College
PTA	25657	Polston, Nicholas Andrew	Polk State College
PTA	25658	Rodriguez, Marlin	Dade Medical College
PTA	25659	Garcia, Yoan	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25660	Dupotey, Alejandro	Keiser University
PTA	25661	Jackson, Lorie Gwendolyn	Jefferson Community&Technical

			College
PTA	25662	Hall, Jill Ann	Cuyahoga Community College
PTA	25663	Mozdy, Amanda Lynn	Pennsylvania State University
PTA	25664	Barrios, Yassel	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25665	Rivera-Garcia, Cacimar A	Keiser University
PTA	25666	Conway-Tague, Maureen Patricia	Community College Of Rhode Island
PTA	25667	Evey, Jayce Collin	Miami Dade College
PTA	25668	Vinyard, William Isaac Mendoza	Dalton State College
PTA	25669	Morales Monroy, Yensy	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25670	Helfrich, Steve Paul	Morton College
PTA	25671	Lopez, Valentina	Herzing University

PTA	25672	Nicholas, Christopher Brendon	Herzing University
PTA	25673	Priebe, Jordan David	Herzing University
PTA	25674	Rivera, Jessica Lee	Herzing University
PTA	25675	Bebout, Brian Michael	Herzing University
PTA	25677	Betts, Lamarcus O'Neal	Herzing University
PTA	25678	Valdes, Marlon Alain	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25679	Rightsell, Jennifer Leigh	Guilford Technical Community College
PTA	25680	Goad, John Thomas Iii	Florida State College At Jacksonville
PTA	25681	Vortherms, Lindsay Leilani	Herzing University
PTA	25682	Hatch, Myah Tehlani	Florida State College At Jacksonville
PTA	25683	Collado, Jose Carlos	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25684	Artus, Jesse Sumner	Miami Dade College
PTA	25685	Mohammed, Naketa Emilet	South University
PTA	25686	Hawk, David	Herzing University
PTA	25687	Campbell, Megan Brittany	Keiser University
PTA	25688	Christy, Michelle Renee	Carroll Community College
PTA	25689	Dabbs, Spencer Christian	Southwest Tennessee Community College
PTA	25690	Perez Mena, Javier	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25691	Steele, Anthony Curtis	Herzing University
PTA	25692	Melvin, Donald Keith	Keiser University
PTA	25693	Dockins, John Wesley	Roane State Community College
PTA	25694	Charles, Vladimir Richard	College Of Central Florida
PTA	25696	Colletti, Joseph Anthony	Concorde Career Institute
PTA	25697	Samson, Monica Tuano	Herzing University
PTA	25699	Farmer, Heather Lynn-Z	Pennsylvania State University
PTA	25700	Hardy, Kenneth Alan	Keiser University
PTA	25701	Tunon, Lorraine Lizbeth	The Praxis Institute
PTA	25702	Hunt, Richarda Lynn	Saint Petersburg State College
PTA	25703	Mompierre, Carlos Nelson	Keiser University
PTA	25704	Peterson, Kelsey Elaine	Ivy Tech State College
PTA	25705	Lunn, Melanie Lee	Hesser College
PTA	25706	Martinez Beaton, Aristides	Dade Medical College
PTA	25708	Smith, Tarik	Kankakee Community College
PTA	25709	Nunez, Frank Louis	Keiser University

PTA	25712	Mason, Felicia Nicole	South University
PTA	25713	Zonts, William Joseph	Saint Petersburg State College
PTA	25714	Painter, Emily Lisa	Chattahoochee Technical College
PTA	25716	Grimes, Travis Richard	Keiser University
PTA	25723	Burrows, Linda M	Northeast Wisconsin Technical College
PTA	25724	Brown, Janell Rene	Ivy Tech State College
PTA	25727	Nemes, Bianca Astra	Mercer County Community College
PTA	25730	Donnelly, Cara Leanne	Herzing University
PTA	25733	Martinez, Rosalia	Hodges University
PTA	25738	Werdung, Allison Marie	Pensacola State College
PTA	25739	Keown, Andrea Lea	Colby Community College
PTA	25740	Sexton, Eric Michael	Professional Skills Institute
PTA	25741	Lowe, William Kyle	Walters State Community College
PTA	25742	Palant, Ashley Brooke	Herzing University
PTA	25744	Lawlor, Emily Christine	Herzing University
PTA	25746	Sindon, Christine J	Broome Community College
PTA	25747	Stukel, Shane	South University
PTA	25751	Sieiro, Tania	South University
PTA	25752	Mellecker, Amy	Morton College
PTA	25754	Keene, Dana Michele	Taylor College
PTA	25755	Richey, Charles Mathew	North Central State College
PTA	25756	Mchugh, Debra J	South College
PTA	25757	Feagins, Calita Katrese	South University
PTA	25758	Kozloski, Cherisse	Naugatuck Valley Community College

PTA	25759	Young, Christopher Curtis	South University
PTA	25760	Tarpey, John	Hodges University
PTA	25761	Bayne, Jennifer M	Loma Linda University
Total Records:	117		